Landis, Denson Y.

# Christians and Jews

A READING LIST

Compiled by BENSON Y. LANDIS, Ph.D.



1940

THE NATIONAL CONFERENCE OF CHRISTIANS AND JEWS
300 Fourth Avenue

New York

# Contents

	PAGE
Introduction	3
1. Christian and Jew	4
2. Jew	4
3. Roman Catholic	5
4. Anglo-Catholic	5
5. Eastern Orthodox	6
6. Protestant	6
7. Racial Concepts	6
8. Minority Peoples	7
9. Immigration	
10. Historical	8
11. Social Reconstruction	9
12. Church and State	9
13. Reference Works	10

# Introduction

This reading list has originated in the practical interests of members of The National Conference of Christians and Jews. "Please send me a list of books and pamphlets in your field," read some of the inquiries. Hence these references took form. The present compilation is built upon previous, and shorter, lists that have been published in the Bulletin of The National Conference.

The reading list that follows cannot be regarded as exhaustive. An effort has been made to list a variety of representative titles. But no claim is made that the titles here given embrace all the available or valuable publications. There are listed numerous works on religion and the institutions of religion. In the selection of these titles the compiler has endeavored fairly to represent Judaism, Catholicism (Roman and Anglo and Eastern Orthodox) and Protestantism.

Persons interested in the practical social programs of religious bodies may write for further bibliographical suggestions to The National Catholic Welfare Conference, 1312 Massachusetts Avenue, N. W., Washington, D. C.; The Federal Council of the Churches of Christ in America, 297 Fourth Avenue, New York; The Synagogue Council of America, 120 Prospect Avenue, Mt. Vernon, N. Y.

Valuable suggestions for this list have been received from Jewish, Catholic and Protestant scholars who were consulted. The final responsibility for selection of titles rests, however, solely with the compiler.

The compiler will be glad to receive suggestions for future editions of this reading list, in case there is sufficient demand to warrant another printing.

BENSON Y. LANDIS.

New York, N. Y.

# Christians and Jews

# A READING LIST

# 1. CHRISTIAN AND JEW

- Catholics, Jews and Protestants. By Claris Edwin Silcox and Galen M. Fisher. New York. Harper & Brothers. 1934. \$2.50. A study of relationship in the United States and Canada.
- All in The Name of God. By Everett R. Clinchy. New York. The John Day Company. 1934. \$1.00. The story of intergroup conflict in America and constructive suggestions for allaying it.
- The American Way. Edited by Newton D. Baker, Carlton J. H. Hayes and Roger W. Straus. Chicago. Willett, Clark and Co. 1936. \$1.00. A study of human relations among Protestants, Catholics and Jews, at the first Williamstown Institute, 1935.
- The Fairway. New York. National Conference of Christians and Jews. 1937. 25c. A discussion of American human relations among Protestants, Catholics and Jews.
- New Relationships with Jews and Catholics. By Mrs. Abel J. Gregg. New York. The Association Press. 1934. 25 cents. Discussion outlines for Protestant youth groups.
- Common Ground. By Morris S. Lazaron. New York. Horace Liveright, Inc. 1938. \$2.50. A plea for mutual understanding between Jew and Christian.
- Christian and Jew. Edited by Isaac Landman. New York. Horace Liveright, Inc. 1929. \$3.00. A symposium to develop better understanding; thirty short essays.
- Christians Only. By Heywood Broun and George Britt. New York. The Vanguard Press. 1931. \$2.50. A study of prejudice in community processes.
- The Conflict of The Church and The Synagogue. By James Parkes. London. Soncino Press.
- In Spirit and In Truth. Edited by G. A. Yates. London. Hodder and Stoughton. 1934. A symposium by British scholars on aspects of Christianity and Judaism.

- Three of Us. By Edwin R. Meiss. New York. Cooperative Publishers. 1936. 25c. A play in one act, seven episodes, dealing with a generation of Americans. May be ordered from The National Conference of Christians and Jews.
- On The Road to Yorktown. By Rupert Hughes, New York. National Conference of Christians and Jews. 1938. 5c. A dramatic sketch.
- Citizenship and Religion. The November, 1939, issue of Religion—A Digest. New York. National Conference of Christians and Jews. The proceedings of The Institute of Human Relations at Williamstown, Mass., in 1939.
- What is The National Conference of Christians and Jews? A pamphlet describing aims and methods of The National Conference.

## 2. JEW

- The Adequacy of Judaism. By H. G. Enelow. New York. Bloch Publishing Company. 1929. 60c. Seven Sermons.
- Judaism as Creed and Life. By Morris Joseph. New York. Bloch Publishing Company. 1924. \$2.50.
- Justice and Judaism in the Light of Today. By M. Silver. New York. Bloch Publishing Company. 1928. \$1.00. Love and justice as conceived in both Judaism and Christianity are here presented.
- The Making of The Modern Jew. By Milton Steinberg. Indianapolis. Bobbs-Merrill Company. 1934. \$2.50. For those who seek to understand the "modern Jew."
- What We Jews Believe. By S. S. Cohon. Cincinnati. Union of American Hebrew Congregations. 1931. \$1.25.
- The Jewish View of Jesus. By Hyman G. Enelow. New York. Macmillan Company. 1920. \$1.00. The relation of Jesus to the Jews.

- The Synoptic Gospels. Edited by Claude J. G. Montefiore. New York. Macmillan Company. 1927. Rev. ed., 2 vols. \$10.00. An avowedly Jewish commentary on the synoptic gospels.
- The Jew and The Universe. By Solomon Goldman. New York. Harper & Brothers. 1936. \$2.50. Differences between Jewish and Occidental philosophy.
- The Reform Movement in Judaism. New & revised. By David Philipson. New York. Macmillan Company. 1931. \$4.50. The rise and development of the movement for reform in Jewish religious life.
- Judaism and Democracy. By Louis Witt. Cincinnati. The Union of American Hebrew Congregations. (Pamphlet.) Free.
- Judaism as a Civilization. By Mordecai M. Kaplan. New York. Macmillan Company. 1934. \$5.00. An exhaustive critique of present forms of Judaism and a presentation of a new theory and practice for Jewish life.
- How Odd of God. By Lewis Browne. New York. The Macmillan Company. 1934. \$3.00. "An introduction to the Jews."
- A Christian Looks at the Jewish Question. By Jacques Maritain. New York. Longmans, Green and Co., 1939. \$1.00. The problem of anti-Semitism discussed by a Catholic philosopher.

## 3. ROMAN CATHOLIC

- The Catholic Spirit in America. By George N. Shuster. New York. Dial Press. 1930. \$3.00.
- Faith of the Roman Church. By C. C. Martindale. New York. Harper & Brothers. 1930. \$2.00.
- The Catholic Church and the Appeal to Reason. By Leo Ward. New York. Macmillan Company. 1926. \$1.00. The claims of the Church viewed in the light of human reason.
- The Catholic Church in Action. By Michael Williams and Julia Kernan. New York. Macmillan Company. 1935. \$3.00. A layman's description of the way the Church functions.
- Externals of the Catholic Church. By John F. Sullivan. New York. P. J. Kenedy & Sons. 1918. \$2.00. Government, ceremonies, festivals, sacraments and devotions.

- The Catholic Church and the Citizen. By John A. Ryan, New York. The Macmillan Company. 1928. \$1.00.
- The Catholic Church and Confession. By Leonard Geddes and Herbert Thurston. New York. The Macmillan Company. 1928. \$1.00.
- The Catholic Church and the Home. By James M. Gillis. New York. The Macmillan Company. 1928. \$1.00.
- The Imitation of Christ. By Thomas á Kempis. New York. E. P. Dutton & Co. \$.90. One of the great Catholic devotional books.
- The Question Box. By Bertrand L. Conway. New York. The Paulist Press. 75 cents. Concise answers to many questions asked about the Roman Catholic Church.
- The Faith of Our Fathers. By Cardinal Gibbons. Baltimore. John Murphy Company. 1917. A simple exposition of Catholic teaching. \$1.00.
- Faith of Millions. By John Anthony O'Brien. 1938. Huntington, Indiana. Our Sunday Visitor. \$1.00 paper; \$1.50 cloth.

# 4. ANGLO-CATHOLIC

- The Living Temple. By William H. Dunphy. New York. Morehouse-Gorham. 1933. \$1.00. An Anglo-Catholic interpretation of the Church and her teachings by a priest of the American Episcopal Church who is active in the Faith and Order Movement.
- Yesterday, To-day, and Forever. By G. D. Rosenthal. New York. Morehouse-Gorham. 1933. 75 cents. An Anglo-Catholic interpretation by a well-known priest of the Church of England.
- Catholic Principles. By Frank N. West-cott. Revised and edited by Rt. Rev. A. C. Hall. New York. Morehouse-Gorham. 1934. \$1.75. Presents the American Episcopal Church as the Catholic Church of the land, as distinguished both from Protestantism and from Roman Catholicism.
- The Faith of the Church. By Kenneth D. Mackenzie. New York. Morehouse-Gorham. 1929. \$2.00. Described as "an explanation of Christian theology for English Catholics."
- A Century of Anglo-Catholicism. By Herbert Leslie Stewart. New York. Oxford University Press. 1929. \$4.75. The

- Anglo-Catholic Movement studied historically and evaluated by an historian who is not himself an Anglo-Catholic.
- Essays Catholic and Critical. Edited by Edward Gordon Selwyn. New York. Macmillan. 1930. \$4.25. A collection of essays on Christian doctrine by the foremost Anglo-Catholic scholars of England.
- A Catholic Looks at His World. By Bernard Iddings Bell. New York. Morehouse-Gorham. 1936. \$1.25. An Anglo-Catholic view of the world in the light of the Catholic doctrine of man.
- Affirmations. By Seven American Anglo-Catholics. New York. Sheed and Ward. 1938. \$2.00. A symposium.

# 5. EASTERN ORTHODOX

- We Beheld His Glory. By Nicholas Arseniev. New York. Morehouse-Gorham. 1936. \$1.90. A discussion of modern theological trends, and especially the Ecumenical Movement, from an Eastern Orthodox viewpoint. Dr. Henry Smith Leiper contributes a valuable introduction for American readers.
- The Eastern Orthodox Church. By Stefan Zankov. New York. Morehouse-Gorham. 1929. \$1.00. One of the best popular introductions to Eastern Orthodoxy in the English language. Dr. John R. Mott contributes a foreword.
- The Orthodox Church. By Sergiei N. Bulgakov. New York. Morehouse-Gorham. 1936. \$3.50. Written to present the Eastern Orthodox Church to Western readers.

## 6. PROTESTANT

- The Church, Catholic and Protestant. By William Adams Brown. New York. Charles Scribner's Sons. 1935. \$2.75. A theologian describes important differences in ways that satisfy both Catholic and Protestant scholars.
- Christianity and Our World. By John Bennett. New York. Association Press. 1937. 50 cents. "Little but mighty"; considers the relation of Christianity to secularism, the economic order, and tyranny.
- Beliefs That Matter. By William Adams Brown. New York. Charles Scribner's Sons. 1930. \$1.00. "A theology for laymen."

- See These Banners Go; the Story of the Protestant Church in America. By F. S. Mead. Indianapolis. Bobbs-Merrill Co., 1936. \$2.00. A collection of brief popular histories of the various denominations.
- Creative Society. By John Macmurray. New York. Association Press. 1936. \$1.50. A British philosopher discusses Communism and Christianity and tries to make a synthesis.
- Theism and the Scientific Spirit. By Walter M. Horton. New York. Harper and Bros. 1933. \$2.00. The final volume of a trilogy on the modern approach to a belief in God.
- Religion in Our Times. By Gaius Glenn Atkins. New York. Round Table Press. 1932. \$2.75. A survey of religion.
- Assurance of Immortality. By Harry Emerson Fosdick. New York. Association Press. 1918. \$1.00.
- Protestantism in the United States. By A. B. Bass. New York. Thomas Y. Crowell Co. 1929. \$3.00. A comprehensive review.
- World Chaos or World Christianity. By Henry S. Leiper. Chicago. Wilett, Clark & Co. 1937. \$1.50. An interpretation of the Oxford and Edinburgh Conferences.
- The Church. By George Stewart. New York. Association Press. 1938. 50 cents. A Presbyterian minister thoroughly interprets prevailing Protestant theory.
- Religious Living. By Georgia Harkness. New York. Association Press. 1937. 50 cents. A brief treatment of what religion means to Protestants.

# 7. RACIAL CONCEPTS

- Races and Ethnic Groups in American Life. By T. J. Woofter. New York. McGraw-Hill Book Company. 1935. \$2.50. One of a series of monographs published under the President's (Hoover) Research Committee on Social Trends. The Negro and other groups considered.
- The Racial Myth. By Paul Radin. New York. McGraw-Hill Book Company. 1934. \$1.50. A popular history of civilization stressing contributions of various groups of people.
- Racial Factors in American Industry. By Herman Feldman. New York. Harper & Brothers. 1931. \$4.00. Industrial maladjustments influenced by racial groups; suggests remedies.

- Race Psychology, A Study of Racial Mental Differences. By Thomas R. Garth. New York. Whittlesey House. 1931. \$2.50. Surveys and interprets a great deal of material, and holds that there are no clear cut mental differences based on race.
- Races, Nations and Classes: the Psychology of Domination and Freedom. By Herbert A. Miller. New York. Lippincott. 1924. \$2.00. Groups conditioned by the history of the country of their origin and their particular class in that country.
- Clash of Color. By Basil Mathews. Edinburgh. Edinburgh House Press. 1936.
  A study in the problem of race.
- Tragedy of the Ages. By Max Hunterberg. New York. Association Press. 1937. \$1.50. A presentation of anti-Semitism.
- Antisemitism Historically and Critically Considered. By Hugo Mauritz Valentin. New York. The Viking Press. 1936. \$3.00. Translated from the Swedish.
- Race? What the Scientists Say. Compiled by Caroline Singer. New York. National Conference on Christians and Jews. 1939. 5 cents.

# 8. MINORITY PEOPLES

- American Minority Peoples. By Donald R. Young. New York. Harper & Brothers. 1932. \$3.50. A study in racial and cultural conflicts in the United States.
- Jewish Experiences in America. Edited by Bruno Lasker. New York. Jewish Welfare Board. 1930. Paper 50 cents. Clothbound, including suggestions for discussion leaders, \$1.00. An informing discussion of Jewish-Gentile relations in America.
- Jews in America. By the Editors of Fortune Magazine. New York. Random House. Inc. 1936. \$1.00. A journalistic interpretation of Jewish participation in American affairs.
- The Jews in American Life. Edited by Rachel Davis DuBois and Emma Schweppe. New York. Thomas Nelson and Sons. 1935. 80 cents. For the teacher and leader.
- The Germans in American Life. Edited by Rachel Davis DuBois and Emma Schweppe. New York. Thomas Nelson and Sons. 1936. 80 cents. One of the "Building American Culture" Series; survey of the part the Germans have played in American life; for junior and senior high school students.

- And Who Is My Neighbor? By "Inquiry." New York. Association Press. 1924. Cloth \$1.00; paper 75 cents. Hundreds of stories of experiences classified under attitudes, handicaps, lack of adjustments, with suggestions of solutions in the form of questions.
- Brown America. By Edwin R. Embree. New York. Viking Press. 1931. \$2.50. Many phases of the Negro's participation in American life.
- Black Folk, Then and Now. By W. E. B. DuBois. New York. Henry Holt and Co. 1939. '\$3.50. A study in the history and sociology of the Negro race.
- The Negro in America. By Alain Locke. Chicago. American Library Association. 1933. 25 cents. A guide in the "Reading with a purpose" series.
- American Literature As An Expression of the National Mind. By Russell Blankenship. New York. Henry Holt & Company. '1931. '\$4.00. 'Shows the contributions of various ethnic groups.
- Theories of Americanization. By Isaac B. Berkson. New York. Teachers College Publications. 1920. \$3.00. Discusses various theories, including the "melting pot" and points toward "cultural pluralism."
- The Black Man in White America. By J. G. Van Deusen. Washington, D. C. Associated Publishers. 1938. \$3.25. Considers the Negro in his economic and social relationships.
- My Country 'Tis! A Community Good Will Pageant. By Althea Osber Silverman. New York. National Conference of Christians and Jews. Fifteen women participants representing different elements in our population.

## 9. IMMIGRATION

- Immigrant Gifts to American Life. By Allen Eaton. New York. Russell Sage Foundation. 1922. \$3.00. A description of exhibits of folk arts held in various parts of the United States and a discussion of resources for future exhibits.
- Immigrant Backgrounds. By Henry P. Fairchild. New York. John Wiley and Sons, Inc. 1927. \$2.00. Brief backgrounds of the immigrants in their own country.
- Immigration. By Lawrence Guy Brown. New York. Longmans, Green and Company. 1933. \$3.00. Cultural conflicts and adjustments.

# 10. HISTORICAL

- Historical Evolution of Modern Nationalism. By Carlton J. H. Hayes. New York. Farrar & Rinehart. 1931. \$3.50. "Growth of modern nationalism showing the emergence of internationalism."
- Story of the Catholic Church. By George Stebbing. St. Louis. B. Herder Book Company. 1920. 4th. ed. \$2.75. A widely used history of the Roman Catholic Church.
- History of the Expansion of Christianity. By K. S. Latourette. New York. Harper and Brothers. 1937-38. 2 vols. \$3.50 per vol. An exhaustive historical study to be completed in six volumes. Volume 1, The First Five Centuries. Volume 2, The Thousand Years of Uncertainty.
- The Religious Background of American Culture. By Thomas C. Hall. Boston. Little Brown & Company. 1930. \$3.00. The contributions of religion to the making of the nation.
- A Decade of Objective Progress in Church Unity 1927-1936. By H. Paul Douglass. New York. Harper & Brothers. 1937. \$1.50. Report No. 4, prepared by the Commission on the Church's Unity in Life and Worship (Commission IV) for the World Conference on Faith and Order, Edinburgh, 1937.
- A Short History of the Jews. By E. E. Kellett. New York. The Dial Press. 1929. \$3.50. From the earliest times to the Roman period.
- Stranger Than Fiction. By Lewis Browne. New York. Macmillan Company. 1935. \$.90. The story of the Jews beautifully told.
- History of the Jews. By Paul Goodman. New York. E. P. Dutton & Co. Sixth revised edition 1930. \$1.50. Briefly and excellently written; an unusual survey.
- Jewish Antecedents of The Christian Sacraments. By Frank S. B. Gavin. New York. Macmillan Company. 1928. \$2.00. Endeavors to prove that the sacramental and liturgical system of historical Christianity, with its ramifying theological developments, derived from Judaism.
- The Old Testament and After. By Claude J. G. Montefiore. New York. Macmillan and Company. 1923. \$3.00. A most interesting work by one of the ablest scholars of liberal Judaism.

- The Crucifixion; from a Jewish Standpoint. By E. G. Hirsch. New York. Bloch Publishing Company. 1921. 35 cents. Lecture delivered at the Chicago Institute for Morals, Religion and Letters.
- The Pharisees and Jesus. By A. T. Robertson. New York. Charles Scribner's Sons. 1920. \$1.75. Jesus' treatment of the Pharisees, and the Pharisees' treatment of Jesus, by an American Christian scholar.
- Judaism in the First Centuries of the Christian Era. By George Foot Moore. (3 volumes) Cambridge. Harvard University Press. 1927-1930. \$20.00. An exhaustive study.
- Jewish Contributions to Civilization. By Joseph Jacobs. Philadelphia. Jewish Publication Society. 1919. \$2.25. Evaluates the contribution of the Jew to present civilization.
- Judaism and the Beginnings of Christianity. New York. Bloch Publishing Company. 1924. \$2.00. Course of lectures delivered in 1923 at Jews' College, London.
- The Pharisees. By Louis Finkelstein. Philadelphia. Jewish Publication Society of America. 1938. 2 vols. \$2.50. per vol. A careful study of sociological backgrounds.
- Jewish Life in the Middle Ages. By Israel Abrahams. London. Edward Goldson. 1932. \$3.00.
- The Democratic Impulse in Jewish History. By Abba Hillel Silver. New York. Bloch Publishing Company. 1928. 75 cents. Points out the continual interest of Jews in democracy.
- History of the Jews. Abram Leon Sachar. New York. Alfred A. Knopf. 1937. \$4.00.
- Intolerance. By Winfred Ernest Garrison, New York. Round Table Press. 1934. \$2.50. A Protestant scholar thoroughly considers forces making for and overcoming intolerance.
- The Story of American Dissent. By John M. Mecklin. New York. Harcourt, Brace & Co. 1934. \$3.00. The American scene as a breeder of the spirit of protest and independence.
- The Rise of American Civilization. By Charles A. and Mary R. Beard. New York. Macmillan Company. 1934. \$3.50. A truly cultural history revealing a breadth of interest rarely found among historians.

America Through Women's Eyes. Edited by Mary R. Beard. New York. Macmillan Company. 1933. \$3.50. A valuable collection of the journals and letters of women in various periods of our history.

# 11. SOCIAL RECONSTRUCTION

- The Relation of Religion to Communism, Fascism and Democracy. Catholicism by John A. Ryan; Protestantism by Frank Kingdon; Judaism by Sidney E. Goldstein. New York. 1938. 15 cents. Available through Dr. Sidney Goldstein, Jewish Institute of Religion, New York, N. Y.
- Forty Years After. Reconstructing the Social Order. Encyclical Letter of His Holiness, Pope Pius XI. Washington. National Catholic Welfare Conference, 1312 Massachusetts Ave., N.W. 1931. One of the noted encyclicals of the Pope.
- Catholic Action. Encyclical Letter of His Holiness, Pope Pius XI. Washington. National Catholic Welfare Conference, 1312 Massachusetts Ave., N.W. 1931.
- The Christian Doctrine of Property. By John A. Ryan. New York. The Paulist Press. 1923. 5 cents. Catholic social teaching interpreted.
- The Christian Social Manifesto. By Joseph C. Husslein. Milwaukee. Bruce. 1931. \$2.50. Catholic social teaching interpreted in vigorous fashion.
- Distributive Justice. By John A. Ryan. New York. Macmillan Company. 1927. \$4.00. "The right and wrong of our present distribution of wealth."
- Social Ideals of the Churches. New York. Federal Council of the Churches of Christ in America. 5 cents. New and revised edition as passed by the Quadrennial Meeting of the Council in 1932.
- The Church and Society. By F. Ernest Johnson. New York. Abingdon Press. 1935. \$1.50. Considers the social functions of the church and presents a program of social education.
- Unions of Their Own Choosing. By R. R. R. Brooks. New Haven. Yale University Press. 1939. \$3.00. An account of the work of the National Labor Relations Board.
- When Labor Organizes. New and rev. ed. By R. R. R. Brooks. New Haven. Yale University Press. 1938. \$3.00.

- The Wages and Hours of American Labor. By Rev. Francis J. Haas. Social Action Series, No. 3. New York. The Paulist Press. 1937. 5 cents.
- The American Labor Movement. By Rev. Francis J. Haas. Social Action Series, No. 6. New York. The Paulist Press. 1937. 5 cents.
- New Guilds. A Conversation. By Rev. R. A. McGowan. Social Action Series, No. 1. New York. The Paulist Press. 1937. 5 cents.
- American Labor. By Herbert Harris. New Haven. Yale University Press. 1939. \$3.75. An historical treatment.
- Child Workers in America. By Dorothy Douglas and Katharine Lumpkin. New York. McBride. 1937. \$3.50. An indictment of the American people for tolerating the continuing evils of child labor.
- Christians in an Un-Christian Society. By E. F. Tittle. New York. Association Press. 1939. 50c. Presents the point of view that only Christianity can produce the social changes necessary to meet present problems.
- Propaganda Good and Bad for Democracy. By Clyde R. Miller and Louis Minsky. New York. National Conference of Christians and Jews. Reprint of a special section on propaganda in Survey Graphic. November, 1939, reporting discussions at The Institute of Human Relations at Williamstown, 1939.
- Prejudice and Minority Groups. By Everett R. Clinchy. New York. National Conference of Christians and Jews. Reprint of a chapter from Our Racial and National Minorities.
- Blueprint for the American Community. New York. National Conference of Christians and Jews. A pamphlet dealing with problems involved in the achievement of wholesome community life.

## 12. CHURCH AND STATE

- Church and State. Ryllis A. Goslin. New York. Foreign Policy Association. 1937. 25 cents. One of the Headline Books, with reference to Russia, Italy, Germany, Spain, Mexico and the United States.
- Church and State in Contemporary America. By William Adams Brown. New York. Charles Scribner's Sons. 1936. \$2.75. "A study of the problems they present and the principles which should determine their relationships."

- The State and The Church. By John A. Ryan and M. F. X. Miller. New York. Macmillan Company. 1936. \$2.25. The Catholic theory well interpreted.
- Religion and the Modern State. By Christopher Dawson. New York. Sheed and Ward. 1935. \$2.00. A consideration of the rise of totalitarianism and other factors by a noted English Catholic scholar.
- "Letter to the Duke of Norfolk." By John Henry Cardinal Newman. In vol. 2. Certain Difficulties Felt by Angelicans in Catholic Teachings Considered. New York. Longmans Green. \$2.00, each volume.
- Seven Centuries of the Problem of Church and State. By Frank S. B. Gavin, Princeton. Princeton University Press. 1938. \$2.00. An Anglo-Catholic scholar considers the past 700 years.
- Christianity and the State. By S. Parkes Cadman. New York. The Macmillan Company. 1924. \$2.50.

## 13. REFERENCE WORKS

The Catholic Encyclopedic Dictionary. Edited by Donald Attwater. New York. The Macmillan Company. 1931. \$4.00.

- Official Catholic Directory. New York. P. J. Kenedy & Sons. Annually, Cloth \$6.00; paper \$4.00. Containing ecclesiastical statistics and important data about Catholic activities in the United States and other nations.
- The Catholic Encyclopedia Dictionary. Compiled and edited under the direction of John J. Wynne. New York. 'Gilmary Society. 1937. \$4.00.
- The Encyclopedia of Jewish Knowledge. Edited by Jacob De Haas. New York. Berhman's Jewish Book House. 1934. \$5.00.
- American Jewish Yearbook. Edited by Harry Schneiderman. Philadelphia. Jewish Publication Society's Press. 1938-39. \$3.00.
- The B'nai B'rith Manual. By Samuel S. Cohon. Cincinnati. B'nai B'rith. 1926. 50 cents. A pocket-sized cyclopedia.
- The Jewish Encyclopedia. Edited by Isidore Singer. New York. Funk and Wagnalls. 1925. \$96.00. Through articles on the Jewish people and Judaism.
- Yearbook of American Churches. Edited by H. C. Weber. New York. Association Press. 1939. \$2.00. Published every two years and sponsored by the Federal Council of the Churches of Christ in America.

# THE NATIONAL CONFERENCE OF CHRISTIANS AND JEWS

Founded in 1928

For Justice, Amity, Understanding and Cooperation among Catholics, Jews and Protestants in America

# 300 FOURTH AVENUE, NEW YORK CITY

## Co-Chairmen

ARTHUR H. COMPTON CARLTON J. H. HAYES ROGER W. STRAUS

#### TREASURER

H. J. OSBORNE Central Hanover Bank & Trust Co.

#### **EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE**

THE CO-CHAIRMEN
THE TREASURER
and
HENRY NOBLE MACCRACKEN
HOMER J. BUCKLEY
JAMES N. ROSENBERG

## DIRECTOR

EVERETT R. CLINCHY

## STAFF

ROBERT A. ASHWORTH MRS. JESSE M. BADER MRS. WILLIAM L. DUFFY LOUIS MINSKY SAMUEL A. MOFFAT HERBERT L. SEAMANS

### REGIONAL SECRETARIES

#### NEW YORK CITY

REGINALD T. KENNEDY 300 Fourth Avenue, New York

## MID-WEST

James M. Yard 203 North Wabash, Chicago, Ill.

# SOUTHERN

A. W. GOTTSCHALL
721 Southern Building,
Washington, D. C.

## IOWA-NEBRASKA

WILLARD JOHNSON 2834 Rutland Avenue, Des Moines, Iowa

### TEXAS-OKLAHOMA

Hastings Harrison Liberty Bank Bldg., Dallas, Texas

### KANSAS-MISSOURI

LESTER M. ELLIS 401 Midland Building, Kansas City, Missouri

# MINNESOTA

CARL F. ZIETLOW 207 Curtis Hotel, Minneapolis, Minn.

### **WISCONSIN**

ELLIS E. JENSEN
759 N. Milwaukee St.,
Milwaukee, Wisc.

## NEW ENGLAND

CECIL W. DERIVAN 87 Weybossett St., Providence, R. I.

## SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA

John Burnside 4665 Willowbrook Ave., Los Angeles, Calif.

